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              1            MR. SELTZER:  We'll get started, folks. 
  
              2  This is a -- the caption of this hearing is in re: 
  
              3  The proposed issuance of state construction permit 
  
              4  for MEP, M-E-P, Flora Power, Flora, Illinois.  My 
  
              5  name is Bill Seltzer, I'm an attorney that works 
  
              6  for EPA, they have asked me to be hearing officer 
  
              7  for this hearing today.  I have no input into the 
  
              8  decision of this case, I am simply here as a 
  
              9  hearing officer.  The first thing I will do is I'm 
  
             10  going to ask the people that are present from the 
  
             11  EPA to introduce themselves and I know there are 
  
             12  some people present from the applicant, I will ask 
  
             13  that they stand up and introduce themselves and I 
  
             14  am going to ask -- forgive me, I'm a little hoarse, 
  
             15  I have a cold or flu or something, I'm going to ask 
  
             16  that everybody spell their last name so that we 
  
             17  have it for the record.  After that, the EPA will 
  
             18  make a short presentation.  If in fact the 
  
             19  applicant wishes to make a presentation, they can 
  
             20  do so and then we will go out to comments in the 
  
             21  audience. 
  
             22            Before we get started any further though, 
  
             23  I want to say that originally this hearing was set 
  
             24  for December 21.  Because of the weather, the 
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              1  hearing of course was continued until this 
  
              2  evening.  At that time the notice that went out 
  
              3  indicated that the record would close January 12 of 
  
              4  2001.  Because of the delay and the fact that the 
  
              5  hearing is starting on January 4, 2001, the record 
  
              6  will close January 21, 2001 which I understand is a 
  
              7  Sunday.  So what that means, actually it's a 
  
              8  Sunday, I believe if it's postmarked by Monday, the 
  
              9  following Monday, it would have to be accepted into 
  
             10  the record.  What this means that is anybody can 
  
             11  make written comments.  There is a comment form up 
  
             12  there indicates where you should send the comments 
  
             13  and who you should send them to and then anything 
  
             14  that is postmarked by January 21, midnight January 
  
             15  21, will be accepted into the record and will be 
  
             16  considered by the decision makers.  Is there any 
  
             17  questions before we proceed any further?  Okay, at 
  
             18  this time I'll ask those present from the EPA to 
  
             19  stand up and introduce themselves, please. 
  
             20            MR. ROMAINE:  Hello, I'm Chris Romaine, I 
  
             21  am manager of the utility unit and the air permit 
  
             22  section.  With me I have -- Youra, stand up here 
  
             23  and introduce yourself. 
  
             24            MR. BENOFAMIL:  Hi, this is Youra 
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              1  Benofamil.  I am permit engineer at Illinois EPA. 
  
              2  I work for him. 
  
              3            MR. FROST:  Brad Frost, I also work with 
  
              4  the Illinois EPA in the office of community 
  
              5  relations. 
  
              6            MR. SELTZER:  Thank you.  Would those 
  
              7  that are present from the applicant please stand up 
  
              8  and identify yourselves and spell your name for the 
  
              9  record. 
  
             10            MR. MALLOY:  My name is Mike Malloy, I 
  
             11  guess spelling my name for the record, 
  
             12  M-i-c-h-a-e-l, M-a-l-l-o-y.  I am project manager. 
  
             13            MR. NORTHWAY:  I'm Rod Northway, economic 
  
             14  development, N-o-r-t-h-w-a-y, Aquila Energy. 
  
             15            MR. BAUER:  I'm Jerry Bauer with Berns 
  
             16  McDonald, we are a consultant working with MEP, 
  
             17  last name is B-a-u-e-r like Eddie Bauer. 
  
             18            MR. SELTZER:  At this time then I will 
  
             19  ask the agency to make its presentation then we 
  
             20  will go on from there. 
  
             21            MR. ROMAINE:  Very quickly, thank you all 
  
             22  for coming tonight, Youra, would you give us a 
  
             23  brief background of the project. 
  
             24            MR. BENOFAMIL:  As Chris said, thank you 
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              1  all for coming tonight, sorry if you can't 
  
              2  understand me, you know I have a little accent, so 
  
              3  good evening ladies and gentlemen.  I am Youra 
  
              4  Benofamil.  I'm a permit engineer in Bureau of 
  
              5  Air.  I would like to present to you a brief 
  
              6  description of the project. 
  
              7            MEP Flora Power Station has requested 
  
              8  construction permit for an electric generation 
  
              9  power plant in the Clay County.  The project will 
  
             10  be located on township roads approximately three 
  
             11  and a half miles northwest of Flora in Clay 
  
             12  County.  The proposed facility is designed to 
  
             13  function as a peaking power station, to generate 
  
             14  electricity in peak demand periods and at other 
  
             15  times when other power plants are not available due 
  
             16  to schedule or unexpected outage. 
  
             17            Operation of the facility may occur 
  
             18  throughout the year, although the facility is 
  
             19  expected to run primarily in the summer months. 
  
             20  The facility would use six combustion gas fired 
  
             21  turbines to generate up to about 500 megawatt of 
  
             22  electricity.  Electrical power is produced by a 
  
             23  generator connected to the shaft of turbine.  The 
  
             24  facility will only burn natural gas which is the 
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              1  cleanest commercially available fuel.  Natural gas 
  
              2  does not contain significant amount of sulfur or 
  
              3  ash as present in coal and oil. 
  
              4            The principal air contaminants emitted 
  
              5  from the proposed turbines are nitrogen oxide and 
  
              6  carbon monoxide.  NOX is formed when nitrogen and 
  
              7  oxygen in the atmosphere combine during high 
  
              8  temperature of combustion.  The nitrogen oxide 
  
              9  emissions from the proposed turbines will be 
  
             10  controlled with low NOX combustors.  NOX emissions 
  
             11  of the facility will be well controlled.  The 
  
             12  application indicates maximum NOX emission of 15 
  
             13  part per million on hourly basis. 
  
             14            Carbon is formed by incomplete combustion 
  
             15  of fuel.  Carbon is associated with most combustion 
  
             16  processes and is found in measurable amounts in 
  
             17  turbine exhaust.  VOM and PM or PM10 are also 
  
             18  emitted as a result of incomplete combustion. 
  
             19  Sulfur is found only on trace amount from 
  
             20  combustion of natural gas.  The project does not 
  
             21  consider the major source because the permitted 
  
             22  emission of the pollutants from this facility would 
  
             23  be less than major source threshold. 
  
             24            For projects that are not major, an air 
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              1  quality study is not required by applicable rules. 
  
              2  However MEP Flora has performed an air quality 
  
              3  study to determine the air quality impacts from the 
  
              4  project for pollutants other than ozone.  The MEP 
  
              5  Flora submitted an air quality impact analysis for 
  
              6  NOX, CO, SO2 and PM.  The analysis shows that the 
  
              7  proposed facility would not significantly effect 
  
              8  ambient air quality in vicinity of the facility. 
  
              9  This is consistent with the Illinois EPA's 
  
             10  experience with other new natural gas fired simple 
  
             11  cycle power plants. 
  
             12            In summary the Illinois EPA has reviewed 
  
             13  the material submitted by the MEP Flora and has 
  
             14  determined that the application for the project 
  
             15  shows that it will comply with applicable state and 
  
             16  federal standards.  We have prepared a draft of 
  
             17  construction permit that sets out the condition 
  
             18  that we propose to place on the facility to assure 
  
             19  continuing compliance.  In closing, we welcome any 
  
             20  comments and questions on our proposed action.  I 
  
             21  turn it to probably MEP Flora or you guys 
  
             22  whatever. 
  
             23            MR. SELTZER:  Could you leave a copy of 
  
             24  that statement with the court reporter.  Now, I 
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              1  will ask if the applicant wishes to make a brief 
  
              2  opening statement. 
  
              3            MR. MALLOY:  I would like to make a brief 
  
              4  opening statement, Mike Malloy, project manager. 
  
              5  Thank you all for coming out this evening.  We are 
  
              6  very grateful for the support of the community. 
  
              7  These folks here this evening are with the EPA and 
  
              8  we are here to discuss the air permit.  If you have 
  
              9  additional questions, as always I am available to 
  
             10  discuss them either after this meeting or at any 
  
             11  other time that you would like to discuss any 
  
             12  ongoing issues that you may have. 
  
             13            MR. SELTZER:  Thank you.  Before we go to 
  
             14  the general audience, I want to comment that I 
  
             15  received a written statement from Lewis Wolfe, the 
  
             16  Mayor of the City of Flora and I'm going to mark 
  
             17  that written statement as Exhibit No. 1 and ask 
  
             18  that it be written into the record so this 
  
             19  statement will physically be an exhibit and it will 
  
             20  also word for word be written into the record of 
  
             21  these proceedings. 
  
             22 
  
             23  BEFORE THE ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
  
             24  AT THE RAMADA INN 201 GARY HAGEN DRIVE, FLORA, IL, 
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              1  ON JANUARY 4, 2001, AT 7:00 P.M. 
  
              2 
  
              3  IN THE MATTER OF:  PROPOSED ISSUANCE OF A 
  
              4  PREVENTION OF SIGNIFICANT DETERIORATION PERMIT TO 
  
              5  MEP FLORA POWER 
  
              6 
  
              7  Natural gas-fired, peak-load electrical power 
  
              8  generating facilities are by almost any measure, 
  
              9  the cleanest source of power generation available 
  
             10  today that can satisfy peak load needs. 
  
             11 
  
             12  It would be ideal if even greener sources of power, 
  
             13  such as wind, solar, or hydro, could satisfy the 
  
             14  state's growing needs, but such sources of power 
  
             15  are not available on demand and often are not 
  
             16  available at all. 
  
             17 
  
             18  Natural gas-fired peaking plants are a vital 
  
             19  component in the state's power portfolio and their 
  
             20  construction and operation should not be 
  
             21  discourages. 
  
             22 
  
             23  Thank you for the opportunity to comment at this 
  
             24  hearing. 
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              1 
  
              2  Respectfully submitted, Lewis L. Wolfe, Mayor. 
  
              3 
  
              4            I am going to go to the registration 
  
              5  cards now in the order in which they were handed to 
  
              6  me and ask those that wish to testify to come 
  
              7  forward and again please spell your last name, 
  
              8  first name if necessary and please offer your 
  
              9  comments and ask any questions you might have.  The 
  
             10  first person is Tony Whitehead. 
  
             11            MR. WHITEHEAD:  I have a letter too and 
  
             12  it is directed to Mr. Thomas Skinner in the matter 
  
             13  of the MEP Flora Power Electrical Power Generating 
  
             14  Facility 3 1/2 miles northwest of Flora.  Dear Mr. 
  
             15  Skinner, this letter is sent at the direction of 
  
             16  the Clay County Board.  The county board of Clay 
  
             17  County, Illinois, supports the issuance of a 
  
             18  prevention of significant deterioration permit to 
  
             19  MEP Flora Power, LLC.  We shall look forward to the 
  
             20  hearing and a finding that the issuance of the 
  
             21  permit is proper and appropriate. 
  
             22            The comments submitted by the Mayor of 
  
             23  the City of Flora are acknowledged and incorporated 
  
             24  herein by reference.  Thank you for the opportunity 
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              1  to comment.  Respectfully submitted, Tony 
  
              2  Whitehead, Clay County Chairman. 
  
              3            MR. SELTZER:  Thank you, sir, can we have 
  
              4  a copy of that letter.  I will ask that the court 
  
              5  reporter before the evening is out mark it as 
  
              6  Exhibit No. 2.  Next is Barbara Gill. 
  
              7            MS. GILL:  B-a-r-b-a-r-a, middle initial 
  
              8  J., Gill, G-i-l-l.  Thank you for coming tonight 
  
              9  and giving us an opportunity to be heard.  I 
  
             10  appreciate the fact that the rest of the people 
  
             11  came too and we realize you are here for the air 
  
             12  quality but we have other concerns.  I live out in 
  
             13  the neighborhood where it's going to be and I just 
  
             14  want to say that the first we heard of this large 
  
             15  gas fired peak or electrical generation power plant 
  
             16  would effect us and our neighbors was when we heard 
  
             17  that a landowner who doesn't own land out in our 
  
             18  neighborhood had made a deal with a private company 
  
             19  to sell his land for this power plant. 
  
             20            All approvals both state and local had 
  
             21  been granted prior to any of us living out there 
  
             22  being informed.  Once we heard of the project, we 
  
             23  searched the back issuance of the newspapers to see 
  
             24  if we could find a legal notice about this 
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              1  particular power plant and sure enough, it had been 
  
              2  published but it was published in such a way that 
  
              3  no one out in our neighborhood knew that it was in 
  
              4  our neighborhood.  It only mentioned that the City 
  
              5  of Flora wanted to expand their enterprise zone. 
  
              6            We are not necessarily opposed to the 
  
              7  power plant but rather the way that it was brought 
  
              8  into our community.  As homeowners and landowners 
  
              9  we are extremely concerned about the environment 
  
             10  and quality of life in Clay County.  We feel that 
  
             11  the actions or lack of actions by the local 
  
             12  governing authorities were inappropriate and 
  
             13  something that will impact the quality of life in 
  
             14  our neighborhood should be public knowledge and not 
  
             15  kept secret from the citizens that will be affected 
  
             16  by this type of operation, thank you. 
  
             17            MR. SELTZER:  Thank you.  Next is Henry 
  
             18  Gill. 
  
             19            MR. GILL:  I hope there's somebody else 
  
             20  going to speak, I didn't intend for it to be this 
  
             21  way.  I think probably half of the people in the 
  
             22  audience are going to tense up when I get up here 
  
             23  because a lot of people that I used to consider my 
  
             24  friends now won't speak to me in the audience and I 
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              1  regret that.  There was no need as my wife 
  
              2  mentioned for us to not be informed of this coming 
  
              3  in. 
  
              4            Several of you are standing right now 
  
              5  saying or wanting to say that hey, we let you know 
  
              6  but as my wife mentioned we didn't know.  We would 
  
              7  not have fought this if we had known but there is 
  
              8  just no use in doing business that way.  You could 
  
              9  have told us.  I am not going to talk about air 
  
             10  quality, but Mr. Frost, is it?  Mr. Frost indicated 
  
             11  that we could express our concerns about a couple 
  
             12  of other issues and I know that it's not going to 
  
             13  have any impact on anything that is done, this is a 
  
             14  done deal, it's going to happen and Mike Malloy, 
  
             15  project manager and I have discussed this at 
  
             16  length, it's going to happen but I would like to 
  
             17  ask Mike and like to ask the county officials who 
  
             18  is it that is looking to make sure that we don't 
  
             19  get our wells pumped dry or effolent (spelled 
  
             20  phonetically) on our farms, who is looking out for 
  
             21  our needs around here? 
  
             22            The tests of the water, I understand one 
  
             23  well was pumped dry during just the test and 
  
             24  another was made murky.  Perhaps you won't be using 
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              1  those aquifers but I just don't have the confidence 
  
              2  because of the secrecy with which this was done 
  
              3  that anyone, any human being on the face of the 
  
              4  earth is looking out for our interests.  We have 
  
              5  lived there, the family that we're talking about, 
  
              6  the farm that I'm on now has been in my family for 
  
              7  many generations.  My father owned it, I bought it, 
  
              8  my brother's farmed it for years.  We paid taxes a 
  
              9  long time, we would have liked to have been 
  
             10  informed and had a little input in this.  I 
  
             11  wouldn't have made any difference.  We agree that 
  
             12  $154,000 a year tax money coming into the county, 
  
             13  that is a good thing.  Now, there's two of these 
  
             14  plants, I assume that's $308,000 a year, that is a 
  
             15  big deal for Clay County, that is a good thing to 
  
             16  have. 
  
             17            Well, to those who might not know where 
  
             18  this is going to go, Clay County doesn't need that 
  
             19  power, Clay Electric loads is dropping because of 
  
             20  the oil fields and Jim Mars closed down, that was 
  
             21  one of the customers, but there was a dropping, the 
  
             22  City of Flora thank goodness is going up, they're 
  
             23  one of the bigger peak loads in the place.  What 
  
             24  they do about it, they went in and put in a 
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              1  generator.  Mayor Wolfe, that's the right thing to 
  
              2  do, that is a good thing, what was that, 10 
  
              3  megawatts that you put in? 
  
              4            MR. WOLFE:  We didn't put them in. 
  
              5            MR. GILL:  IMEA, Illinois Municipal 
  
              6  Electric Agency put them in to serve the load 
  
              7  around this part, that is a big load, 10 megawatt 
  
              8  but we are talking about 500 here but we are also 
  
              9  talking about another plant, we are talking about 
  
             10  1000, that is enough for a hundred cities the size 
  
             11  of Flora so just to get the record straight, this 
  
             12  is not something that we need locally, we are doing 
  
             13  it to make money, that is all right, capitalism is 
  
             14  a fine thing to have, capitalism is just fine. 
  
             15  St. Louis, Chicago, they need the power, we are 
  
             16  going to be in the business of doing it. 
  
             17            Now, I mentioned two power plants, one 
  
             18  here next to ours, one up north by Moorsmill Bridge 
  
             19  near Louisville, second one in Clay County so I 
  
             20  don't know if it's 500 or 300, let's say it's a 
  
             21  similar size, we are talking about two big power 
  
             22  plants enough for the peaking of a hundred cities 
  
             23  like Flora, Flora has already got theirs, it's not 
  
             24  going to do Flora any good.  Then up at Effingham 
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              1  there is another one that's about built now, it's a 
  
              2  big one.  I don't know, I assume it's about 500, do 
  
              3  you know Mr. Sulfred (spelled phonetically)? 
  
              4            MR. SULFRED:  No, I don't know. 
  
              5            MR. GILL:  It's a big one, it's about 
  
              6  completed now.  We are going to be -- we are going 
  
              7  to be a place that supplies peaking power for a lot 
  
              8  of big cities.  This is -- somehow it's a feeding 
  
              9  frenzy to come in this location, we got a pipeline 
  
             10  and we got a powerline or close to one another, 
  
             11  that is great.  Now, 50 years ago our father, I got 
  
             12  my brother here, Trunkline Gas Company came in and 
  
             13  wanted to build a pipeline, they didn't ask, they 
  
             14  told.  They said to my father you sign and let us 
  
             15  go through here or we'll get some lawyers, we will 
  
             16  make you sign.  We are going to condemn it.  We 
  
             17  need to transfer gas up to Chicago coming up from 
  
             18  Louisian, that's 50 years ago, he didn't have a 
  
             19  choice but they were very generous, they gave him 
  
             20  50 bucks, 50 bucks and for that 50 dollars they can 
  
             21  put as many pipelines they want to on these farms 
  
             22  out there in that part of the country.  They didn't 
  
             23  say a word about using the -- they said they need 
  
             24  it for transmission, they didn't say a word about 
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              1  distribution which is what this is, you are going 
  
              2  to build a power plant out here.  Well, if it had 
  
              3  been that when they were asking when folks like you 
  
              4  were giving them permits, I don't know if they had 
  
              5  been too receptive about them being able to get 
  
              6  away with giving those poor farmers out there who 
  
              7  couldn't afford to hire attorneys, they had to do 
  
              8  it, they knew they were going to lose, they knew 
  
              9  the land would be condemned, 50 bucks, that was the 
  
             10  total amount given for that easement. 
  
             11            Now, they can come in, one line in, put a 
  
             12  second line, put a third line in, we got three 
  
             13  lines, now we got a power plant.  We didn't really 
  
             14  feel like that was what we were getting into when 
  
             15  we accepted 50 bucks, my father did.  That was in 
  
             16  1950 and I just -- young back then but I can 
  
             17  remember very well what the farmers there had 
  
             18  facing them, all but two signed it, two or -- one 
  
             19  was an attorney I believe, is that right, no, Ralph 
  
             20  Smith -- 
  
             21            AUDIENCE MEMBER:  Jim Block, he had 20 
  
             22  acres over there, he didn't sign.  Ralph Smith he 
  
             23  wasn't an attorney. 
  
             24            MR. GILL:  He had deep pockets, he could 
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              1  get an lawyer I suppose but anyway there's a couple 
  
              2  of farms that didn't sign it but the rest of them 
  
              3  were intimidated, they signed that.  What we got 
  
              4  now, we got a power plant coming in.  There is not 
  
              5  a darn thing we can do about it.  I am just asking 
  
              6  if anybody in this room can or knows of someone who 
  
              7  can make sure that Mike Malloy doesn't pump my well 
  
              8  dry.  That's all I am looking for tonight, Mike. 
  
              9            MR. MALLOY:  Henry, let's talk about that 
  
             10  after the meeting. 
  
             11            AUDIENCE MEMBER:  I got a well too. 
  
             12            MR. GILL:  There is a whole lot of us. 
  
             13  Mike, we are concerned because of the secrecy with 
  
             14  which this was done and as I mentioned to you 
  
             15  before the meeting, you tried to -- phrase this 
  
             16  correctly, you offered us something in the front 
  
             17  yard of Mr. Tackman and you said that you would 
  
             18  reimburse any of us if we suffered any damage if we 
  
             19  sold our farms and we took less money for it than 
  
             20  what we would have gotten if you hadn't been there 
  
             21  but the way you put that in writing, Mike, you put 
  
             22  a term in that that I don't think -- hesitate to 
  
             23  say this but somebody in the room may have signed 
  
             24  this agreement, you were going to require me to 
  
                                                                 18 
  
  
  
  



  



  
  
  
  
              1  keep this secret, am I telling you the truth, 
  
              2  Mike?  You are hesitating.  I got it in writing 
  
              3  here if you need to see it. 
  
              4            MR. MALLOY:  Let me ask, should I be 
  
              5  responding to these questions or -- 
  
              6            MR. SELTZER:  You do not have respond to 
  
              7  the questions. 
  
              8            MR. GILL:  You don't have to respond. 
  
              9            MR. MALLOY:  There is a clause in that 
  
             10  agreement that requires that both parties keep the 
  
             11  details of the agreement to themselves. 
  
             12            MR. GILL:  Then what?  If I violate that, 
  
             13  not only is the contract -- not only do you not 
  
             14  have to pay anything, No. 2, I have to pay anyone 
  
             15  who you made this similar agreement with that found 
  
             16  out about it.  Yes, that is true, I have it with 
  
             17  me, Mike, and that's the part that offended me and 
  
             18  made me feel that your company is paranoid about 
  
             19  secrecy.  The other plants, you know, when I 
  
             20  visited your plant in Kansas City, Mike, they 
  
             21  talked about having a discussion with the 
  
             22  landowners in the area and that is the way to do 
  
             23  business.  You folks didn't do that.  That's why 
  
             24  I'm concerned about any thing that might be said or 
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              1  done that protects our rights as landowners in the 
  
              2  area there.  I don't want you pumping my well dry 
  
              3  but it appears to me you can come in and pump my 
  
              4  well dry without me having a thing to say about 
  
              5  it.  The size of the plant -- that's enough, Mike, 
  
              6  you can relax now, I am not going to come up and 
  
              7  talk about the other terms I didn't agree with you 
  
              8  on but it's all right to have disagreements but 
  
              9  that particular one I felt was illustrative of the 
  
             10  fact that you are paranoid about secrecy for some 
  
             11  reason because of the way this was originated, we 
  
             12  were not informed about it.  It wouldn't have hurt 
  
             13  for somebody to call us up and say hey, you know 
  
             14  there is going to be a power plant. 
  
             15            Several of you know Walter Gentry, he's 
  
             16  the originator of the biggest industry we have out 
  
             17  there, not an irresponsible guy.  He come out and 
  
             18  visited me.  He was picking me up to go on a trip, 
  
             19  says hey, where is that power plant going to be 
  
             20  built up northwest of Flora, I said I don't know. 
  
             21            MR. MALLOY:  I would say the best thing 
  
             22  for him to do is go out there and see where the 
  
             23  sign says future site of the power plant, my phone 
  
             24  number underneath it. 
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              1            MR. GILL:  Mike, the sign wasn't up. 
  
              2            MR. MALLOY:  It's been up for a long time 
  
              3  as long as we considered -- 
  
              4            MR. GILL:  When it came in the newspaper 
  
              5  but Mike, I'm not arguing with you, what I am 
  
              6  saying is what happened he came to us and asked us 
  
              7  where it's going to be.  I said I don't know where 
  
              8  it's going to be but I'll show you where I'd put it 
  
              9  if I were building a plant like that, it certainly 
  
             10  wasn't down a little country road in an area like 
  
             11  that, it wasn't so far off the highway, it was 
  
             12  closer to where the gas station, the old Hariza 
  
             13  (spelled phonetically) plant is out there by the 
  
             14  race track, that seemed like a lot better place for 
  
             15  it near Buck Creek and my neighbors who live out in 
  
             16  that area, I am not advocating that it be put out 
  
             17  there but at least it'd be downwind of you. 
  
             18            Mike, I don't want to pick on you but you 
  
             19  are kind of adversarial to me tonight and I'm going 
  
             20  to tell you another thing about the noise, I know 
  
             21  we are not talking about noise but several of you 
  
             22  on the county board apparently you took a trip and 
  
             23  went to visit one, well, gosh, you could have told 
  
             24  some of us what was going on.  My understanding is 
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              1  when you got there, the plant wasn't running, is 
  
              2  that correct or not, that's what I been told and 
  
              3  one of your board members told me about it, he said 
  
              4  it doesn't make any noise.  Well, it wasn't running 
  
              5  when they were there.  He said I talked to a 
  
              6  neighbor who lived across the street, he said he 
  
              7  doesn't even hear it when it starts up.  I thought 
  
              8  that is pretty good, found out the street is I74, 
  
              9  Interstate highway.  If you don't hear it on the 
  
             10  other side of the interstate, that doesn't give me 
  
             11  a great deal of confidence we out there won't hear 
  
             12  it. 
  
             13            So Mike, I appreciate the fact that you 
  
             14  invited my wife and I, some of the neighbors out to 
  
             15  look at it, show us subdivision of homes that have 
  
             16  been built after the power plant and that's great 
  
             17  and I found that probably it isn't as noisy in that 
  
             18  area as I thought.  You will admit, Mike, that the 
  
             19  place you told me you couldn't hear it, we heard 
  
             20  it, didn't we?  We did hear it in that subdivision, 
  
             21  remember, wife and I we stopped, yeah, we hear it 
  
             22  as the wind was blowing from that direction but 
  
             23  let's also point out that the environment there is 
  
             24  hilly and the environment has a lot of trees around 
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              1  it so hills and trees block the sound more than it 
  
              2  does in our area which is flat, fertile farmland, 
  
              3  little different environment so let's research 
  
              4  these things a little bit more and I ask -- I'm 
  
              5  more talking not to Malloy, not to the EPA, I would 
  
              6  like for my friends and neighbors to listen to me 
  
              7  and say how many of these things do you want in 
  
              8  Clay County?  Is that enough, two or am I going to 
  
              9  have another one down in my neighborhood in a few 
  
             10  days?  What are we going to do? 
  
             11            Now, do you have that piece of paper, I 
  
             12  am going to shut up here in just a minute.  Our 
  
             13  friends and neighbors up in Sidney, Illinois, they 
  
             14  had the foresight of having zoning.  I'm not here 
  
             15  saying zoning is great for everyone, but they got a 
  
             16  million bucks for going and they had zoning and the 
  
             17  power plant that was coming in said hey, if you 
  
             18  will bend the rules, give us a grant, we will put 
  
             19  in a power plant here, we will pay you taxes, give 
  
             20  you a million bucks.  Well, this -- you got a good 
  
             21  deal, Mike, you are a smart man, you searched out 
  
             22  and Mike, you are an honest guy, you know that the 
  
             23  reason all these are coming in here local southern 
  
             24  Illinois counties is low land use planning. 
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              1  Fellows, we'd be better off if we had that sort of 
  
              2  thing because Sidney is a million bucks richer than 
  
              3  we are because they had something to keep the 
  
              4  company from coming in and doing anything they 
  
              5  want.  Mike, you made a good deal, I commend you. 
  
              6            The water, I am going to just real 
  
              7  quickly talk about it, some of you in the room know 
  
              8  about that more than I.  If you have 500 megawatts 
  
              9  or 300 megawatt, Mike, doesn't make a lot of 
  
             10  difference, 300 megawatts, you are going to use 
  
             11  hundred gallons per minute and that is for cooling 
  
             12  when it comes -- I tried to see about what that 
  
             13  equates to and that equates to approximately 400 
  
             14  homes, the 500 megawatt would, 300 wouldn't, 300 
  
             15  would be about 240 homes.  Our aquifers out there, 
  
             16  Mike, won't stand that much.  If somebody builds 
  
             17  400 houses in our area, we just don't have that 
  
             18  much water out there, that is the reason I wrote to 
  
             19  you and asked you if were going to try to get on 
  
             20  Clay County water, your Kansas City plant is on a 
  
             21  public water supply, the one -- now, you graciously 
  
             22  wrote back to me in E mail and said you had applied 
  
             23  to Clay County water, that is great, the chairman 
  
             24  of the Clay County water is sitting in the room 
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              1  tonight, I wondered are you coordinating with them 
  
              2  that if you do get that hundred gallons per minute 
  
              3  from them, are you going to put in a big enough 
  
              4  pipeline that you can do that without causing 
  
              5  problems for the rest of the users on that line? 
  
              6  Really, really I would think that you guys might 
  
              7  want to work together.  Your alternatives seems to 
  
              8  be run our wells dry or not have a big enough line 
  
              9  to get the water that you need.  I am sincere in my 
  
             10  concern about that, Mike, I wish somebody would be 
  
             11  addressing that, thank you very much. 
  
             12            MR. SELTZER:  Thank you very much. 
  
             13  During your presentation, you did talk about a 
  
             14  document.  If you wish, we can make that document 
  
             15  part of the record.  I don't know what the document 
  
             16  is but you referred to it. 
  
             17            MR. GILL:  Let me address that, there was 
  
             18  one more clause in that, Mike, and the clause was 
  
             19  that if I, any of my relatives or any of my friends 
  
             20  did anything in any way to oppose the development 
  
             21  of this power plant, then that agreement was null 
  
             22  and void so I haven't signed the agreement, it's a 
  
             23  draft agreement and I suspected it's not 
  
             24  appropriate to have that into the record unless you 
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              1  feel it's necessary which I don't feel it is.  It's 
  
              2  intended to show the secrecy and I am mainly 
  
              3  addressing my friends in Clay County.  I don't 
  
              4  think it's going to be relevant to whether you 
  
              5  issue a permit on air quality because I don't think 
  
              6  it's relevant to air quality, I am not opposing the 
  
              7  permit on air quality.  Gas turbines are a good way 
  
              8  to go.  I really feel the way to do it is the way 
  
              9  IMEA did the City of Flora, put locally, small ones 
  
             10  locally, be that as it may, it's capitalism.  If 
  
             11  you can make money selling power to Chicago and do 
  
             12  it out of Clay County, I guess that is the way the 
  
             13  world works, thank you. 
  
             14            MR. SELTZER:  Thank you, Mr. Gill.  Next 
  
             15  is Josephine McCarthy. 
  
             16            MS. MCCARTHY:  I reserve my right to 
  
             17  speak later. 
  
             18            MR. SELTZER:  Robert Stortzum? 
  
             19            MR. STORTZUM:  I am Robert Stortzum, 
  
             20  S-t-o-r-t-z-u-m.  I'm the vice chairman of the 
  
             21  County of Clay and also the chairman of the Clay 
  
             22  Water, Clay County Water Incorporated and the only 
  
             23  comment that I have is that MEP Flora Power Plant 
  
             24  has applied for transmission of water through our 
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              1  company and that will be granted. 
  
              2            MR. SELTZER:  Thank you. 
  
              3            MS. GILL:  I have a question possibly, am 
  
              4  I allowed to pass a question?  Barbara Gill, and I 
  
              5  understand that you have applied for Clay County 
  
              6  Water but how far down the road is Clay County 
  
              7  Water going to be available, in our neighborhood? 
  
              8            MR. STORTZUM:  I am not exactly sure how 
  
              9  far those lines are. 
  
             10            MS. GILL:  I think we been hearing that 
  
             11  for about four years now. 
  
             12            MR. STORTZUM:  We are talking not in 
  
             13  miles, in days? 
  
             14            MS. GILL:  About what timeframe will it 
  
             15  be available? 
  
             16            MR. STORTZUM:  We have submitted our 
  
             17  request for a permit through Illinois EPA and as 
  
             18  soon as we get that back within -- I think it's 
  
             19  within 30 days, 30 to 60 days, we can start bids 
  
             20  for construction. 
  
             21            MS. GILL:  Is that for the general 
  
             22  families living out there or for a big industry 
  
             23  like we are talking about here? 
  
             24            MR. STORTZUM:  That is the whole 
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              1  project. 
  
              2            MR. GILL:  Can you accommodate MEP Flora 
  
              3  hundred gallons per minute? 
  
              4            MR. STORTZUM:  I am sure that -- we have 
  
              5  a contract with the City of Flora for -- I believe 
  
              6  it's 400 thousand gallon per day, isn't that 
  
              7  correct? 
  
              8            MR. WOLFE:  I think so. 
  
              9            MR. GILL:  You weren't at the board 
  
             10  meeting of Clay County Water last time but we asked 
  
             11  if MEP Flora does get on, does your line 
  
             12  accommodate that much water.  The answer was no. 
  
             13  You hadn't been approached by them so you were 
  
             14  making no provisions whatsoever, could you address 
  
             15  that, Bob, not now but I mean -- 
  
             16            MR. STORTZUM:  I am sure that will be 
  
             17  addressed, positive it will. 
  
             18            MR. SELTZER:  Ms. McCarthy, I am going to 
  
             19  go back to you because I don't have anybody else 
  
             20  that filled out a card that indicated they want to 
  
             21  make a comment. 
  
             22            MS. MCCARTHY:  My name is Josie McCarthy, 
  
             23  M-c-C-a-r-t-h-y, I am just wondering has the EPA 
  
             24  ever done an air quality study in our area because 
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              1  I can tell you for a fact with the wells going, oh, 
  
              2  man, it's about ready to kill me with all the 
  
              3  sulfur from the oil wells and things like that. 
  
              4  Has there ever been an air quality study in our 
  
              5  area? 
  
              6            MR. ROMAINE:  I have a copy of our annual 
  
              7  air quality report.  I don't believe we have any 
  
              8  monitors in Clay County. 
  
              9            MS. MCCARTHY:  I would like to make my 
  
             10  house first. 
  
             11            MR. ROMAINE:  We do have monitors in 
  
             12  Wabash County, that shows that in terms of sulfur 
  
             13  dioxide the area does comply with SO2 air quality 
  
             14  standards. 
  
             15            MS. MCCARTHY:  About four or five years 
  
             16  ago they put in several wells real close to me, oil 
  
             17  wells, they emit such a sulfur, odor that I had 
  
             18  asked the Coil and Mines people, I made a 
  
             19  complaint, several of us in the area made 
  
             20  complaints but nothing was ever offered to us about 
  
             21  air quality or if there was a study or who to go 
  
             22  from there.  All we did was made a complaint and 
  
             23  that was it.  I didn't even know the EPA did air 
  
             24  quality studies anywhere and why haven't they 
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              1  chosen Clay County? 
  
              2            MR. ROMAINE:  The simple answer is I am 
  
              3  not sure we knew about the problem.  Did you 
  
              4  complain to us or just to Mines and Minerals? 
  
              5            MS. MCCARTHY:  Mines and Minerals.  They 
  
              6  said there was nothing we could do about it. 
  
              7            MR. ROMAINE:  I think what we need to do 
  
              8  is follow up after and get the details and 
  
              9  particular location and see if in fact there is 
  
             10  something. 
  
             11            MS. MCCARTHY:  I know the Youngs moved 
  
             12  away because his wife got sick from the air. 
  
             13            MR. ROMAINE:  I assume they're flaring 
  
             14  raw gas coming off the wells? 
  
             15            MS. MCCARTHY:  Gas but not lit, they 
  
             16  weren't lighting them at the time because they 
  
             17  wouldn't light them because they let a field catch 
  
             18  on fire, they didn't want that to happen again. 
  
             19            MR. ROMAINE:  Certainly if the problem is 
  
             20  not keeping the flares lit, that is something we 
  
             21  could look into I'm sure. 
  
             22            MS. MCCARTHY:  Any time you go by the 
  
             23  tank batteries, it really smells, reaks down our 
  
             24  way bad, I don't know how our neighbors can stand 
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              1  it, it's hard.  It's got to be awful. 
  
              2            MR. ROMAINE:  I assume what you are 
  
              3  smelling is hydrogen sulfide? 
  
              4            MS. MCCARTHY:  Uh-huh. 
  
              5            MR. ROMAINE:  Obviously if they are not 
  
              6  keeping the flares lit, you are getting raw 
  
              7  hydrogen sulfide. 
  
              8            MS. MCCARTHY:  What would be the -- with 
  
              9  the combination of the new turbines going in and 
  
             10  this what we already have, if they're -- what kind 
  
             11  of study do you have from them because man, it 
  
             12  stinks by my house.  I don't know what kind of -- 
  
             13            MR. ROMAINE:  Difference of apples and 
  
             14  oranges, you are talking about raw gas coming off 
  
             15  of an oil well that hasn't been treated to remove 
  
             16  hydrogen sulfide and if they don't have the flare 
  
             17  lit, you are smelling hydrogen sulfide.  The good 
  
             18  thing about hydrogen sulfide from the safety 
  
             19  perspective, it smells so you do know you are being 
  
             20  exposed to it, you can take the proper action. 
  
             21  This facility would be using treated natural gas, 
  
             22  treated natural gas they have removed the sulfur 
  
             23  from to trace level, there wouldn't be any 
  
             24  interaction with this facility with what you are 
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              1  already being experienced with from the 
  
              2  uncontrolled operation of the oil wells but 
  
              3  certainly in terms of the oil wells, if they 
  
              4  haven't been keeping the flares lit, obviously we 
  
              5  don't want fields to catch on fire but there should 
  
              6  be some way to -- they should be able to operate 
  
              7  the flare without igniting farmers. 
  
              8            MS. MCCARTHY:  It's just making it so 
  
              9  gosh darn awful for us to breathe the air around 
  
             10  our homes because it makes you sick. 
  
             11            MR. ROMAINE:  Sure, that is why you are 
  
             12  supposed to have flares to handle that gas. 
  
             13            MS. MCCARTHY:  It's not healthy at all 
  
             14  but I have never ever seen anyone from the EPA come 
  
             15  down our area or anything.  I don't think the EPA 
  
             16  even knows that Clay County exists other than you 
  
             17  guys today just showing up. 
  
             18            AUDIENCE MEMBER:  Oh, yes they do. 
  
             19            AUDIENCE MEMBER:  I'd like to make a 
  
             20  comment if I may. 
  
             21            MR. SELTZER:  You can make a comment but 
  
             22  please identify yourself, stand up and identify 
  
             23  yourself. 
  
             24            MR. GILL:  Dan Gill, G-i-l-l.  I know 
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              1  exactly what you are talking about, don't expect 
  
              2  Illinois EPA to give you any help.  A few years 
  
              3  back they had changed land operations out in our 
  
              4  neighborhood, manure running all over the country, 
  
              5  flies, terrible, I started, took about two years, 
  
              6  started Clay County Health Department, Illinois 
  
              7  EPA, they sent a representative down, caught him 
  
              8  burning chickens in an open fire strictly against 
  
              9  the law and after two years, you know where I wound 
  
             10  up, a complete circle back to the health department 
  
             11  so don't expect any help out of the Illinois EPA, 
  
             12  that is my experience, thank you. 
  
             13            MS. MCCARTHY:  That is the only comment I 
  
             14  had was on that and also the water wells but we're 
  
             15  not here for water wells. 
  
             16            MR. ROMAINE:  Thank you for coming and we 
  
             17  can do what we can do, hopefully we will be able to 
  
             18  do something to make sure they keep those flares 
  
             19  lit. 
  
             20            MR. SELTZER:  Let me ask at this point if 
  
             21  there is anybody else here that wishes to make 
  
             22  comments or ask questions. 
  
             23            MR. GILL:  I have spoken too long but I 
  
             24  do have one kind of slipped through Youra's 
  
                                                                 33 
  
  
  
  



  



  
  
  
  
              1  presentation, I apologize for not catching 
  
              2  everything you said.  I heard about the NOX and 
  
              3  sulfer and I believe I heard you mention something 
  
              4  about there was no information on the ozone.  I 
  
              5  want to clarify that.  Did you mean it's not being 
  
              6  addressed or it's not a problem or what is the 
  
              7  issue with ozone? 
  
              8            MR. ROMAINE:  I'll answer that, ozone 
  
              9  isn't a local problem in Clay County.  The extent 
  
             10  that there are elevated levels of ozone in Clay 
  
             11  County, it's no different than Effingham or Marion 
  
             12  or actually Springfield, depending on which way the 
  
             13  wind is going, you can get the flume coming from 
  
             14  St. Louis so to clean up the foot of the higher 
  
             15  levels of ozone in Clay County, we'd like to clean 
  
             16  up the problem in St. Louis, that's one of our 
  
             17  things that we are working on. 
  
             18            MR. GILL:  So most of the stuff comes out 
  
             19  of that is going to go to Newton and downwind from 
  
             20  us, Terre Haute? 
  
             21            MR. ROMAINE:  The power plant won't have 
  
             22  any effect on local ozone, it will just really add 
  
             23  to another small source of NOX compared to Newton 
  
             24  and Baldwin and coal fired power plants will effect 
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              1  places like Indianapolis and Chicago where there's 
  
              2  the concentration of cars and industry as well as 
  
              3  other power plants. 
  
              4            MR. GILL:  Is it true that -- again my 
  
              5  name is Gill, the noise issue is outside your 
  
              6  perview, is that correct, it's a local thing? 
  
              7            MR. ROMAINE:  It's outside the permitting 
  
              8  process.  We do not have a permitting process for 
  
              9  noise, however there are state regulations for 
  
             10  noise.  We do have I guess at this point it's a 
  
             11  very small group, we have two people that are 
  
             12  available to assist local governments and 
  
             13  individuals pursuing enforcement of those noise 
  
             14  regulations.  My understanding is they're actually 
  
             15  fairly stringent noise regulations, they're there 
  
             16  to protect against nuisance noise, they are fairly 
  
             17  well developed in terms of having different decibal 
  
             18  levels for different frequencies and certainly it's 
  
             19  something that the City of Flora, the little bit of 
  
             20  technical assistance which are enforced to make 
  
             21  sure that MEP complies with those regulations. 
  
             22            MR. GILL:  But it's Clay County, outside 
  
             23  the City of Flora. 
  
             24            MR. SELTZER:  You can find out if you 
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              1  have any county ordinances that address themselves 
  
              2  to noise pollution but the agency has a statewide 
  
              3  standard that all emitters have to meet, commercial 
  
              4  emitted.  There was a problem -- I think Coffeen, I 
  
              5  don't think is very far from here, is Coffeen very 
  
              6  far? 
  
              7            MR. GILL:  Hundred miles. 
  
              8            MR. SELTZER:  I saw it on the way here, 
  
              9  there has been some noise sources around this area 
  
             10  that the agency has resolved those problems because 
  
             11  they were in violation of the noise standard. 
  
             12            MR. GILL:  Do you have a phone number 
  
             13  where we could get a copy of that? 
  
             14            MR. ROMAINE:  I have a copy of the noise 
  
             15  rights with me. 
  
             16            MR. SELTZER:  Is there anybody else that 
  
             17  would like to make any comments or ask any 
  
             18  questions? 
  
             19            MS. GILL:  I'd like to ask a question, 
  
             20  Neoma Gill, do you keep a check on this plant at 
  
             21  times for what they're throwing out, what they're 
  
             22  putting in the air, the EPA, the Illinois EPA, do 
  
             23  they come around and check them or do you just take 
  
             24  their word for it? 
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              1            MR. ROMAINE:  When a plant like this is 
  
              2  built, we visit it on a regular basis certainly 
  
              3  once a year.  They are required to do testing of 
  
              4  their emission, they are required to keep very 
  
              5  detailed records of their operation.  We do keep 
  
              6  track of how they operate. 
  
              7            MS. GILL:  That's just what I wanted to 
  
              8  make sure somebody was going to come around and 
  
              9  check on them. 
  
             10            MR. SELTZER:  Anybody else?  Okay, the 
  
             11  agency will prepare what is called a responsive 
  
             12  summary and it basically will respond to questions 
  
             13  and comments that are raised this evening and any 
  
             14  other comments or questions that are raised before 
  
             15  the close of the record by your written submissions 
  
             16  and a copy of that responsive summary will be sent 
  
             17  to everybody who filled out a card so long as we 
  
             18  have your mailing address here.  As I said before, 
  
             19  the record in this matter will stay open until 
  
             20  January 21 of this year so as long as your written 
  
             21  comment is postmarked prior to midnight January 21, 
  
             22  it will be accepted into the record. 
  
             23            MR. GILL:  Could you clarify for me, if 
  
             24  we spouted off here tonight, do we still need to 
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              1  put in written comments? 
  
              2            MR. SELTZER:  Everything you said tonight 
  
              3  becomes part of the record. 
  
              4            MR. GILL:  It will have the same weight 
  
              5  whether we write them or not? 
  
              6            MR. SELTZER:  Correct.  Are there any 
  
              7  other questions before we adjourn?  I want to thank 
  
              8  you all for attending this evening and we will 
  
              9  adjourn this evening at quarter till eight, thank 
  
             10  you. 
  
             11 
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